

METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

October 12, 2017 4:00 pm Regular Meeting 700 Second Avenue South

(between Lindsley Avenue and Middleton Street)
Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center (1st Floor)

MISSION STATEMENT

The Planning Commission guides growth and development as Nashville and Davidson County evolve into a more socially, economically and environmentally sustainable community, with a commitment to preservation of important assets, efficient use of public infrastructure, distinctive and diverse neighborhood character, free and open civic life, and choices in housing and transportation.

Commissioners Present:
Greg Adkins, Chair
Jeff Haynes
Lillian Blackshear
Dr. Pearl Sims
Councilmember Fabian Bedne
Daveisha Moore, representing Mayor Barry

Staff Present: Bob Leeman, Deputy Director George Rooker, Special Projects Manager Kelly Adams, Admin Services Officer III Lucy Kempf, Planning Manager II Lee Jones, Planning Manager II Michael Briggs, Planning Manager I Lisa Milligan, Planner III Marty Sewell, Planner III Shawn Shepard, Planner II Levi Hill, Planner II Abbie Rickoff, Planner II Patrick Napier, Planner I Gene Burse, Planner I Emily Lamb, Legal Craig Owensby, Public Information Officer

Commissioners Absent: Jessica Farr, Ron Gobbell, Brian Tibbs, Jennifer Hagan-Dier J. DOUGLAS SLOAN, III

Secretary and Executive Director, Metro Planning Commission

Metro Planning Department of Nashville and Davidson County
800 2nd Avenue South P.O. Box 196300 Nashville, TN 37219-6300
p: (615) 862-7190; f: (615) 862-7130

Notice to Public

Please remember to turn off your cell phones.

Nine of the Planning Commission's ten members are appointed by the Metropolitan Council; the tenth member is the Mayor's representative. The Commission meets on the second and fourth Thursday of each month at 4:00 pm, in the Sonny West Conference Center on the ground floor of the Howard Office Building at 700 Second Avenue South. Only one meeting may be held in December. Special meetings, cancellations, and location changes are advertised on the Planning Department's main webpage.

The Planning Commission makes the final decision on final site plan and subdivision applications. On all other applications, including zone changes, specific plans, overlay districts, and mandatory referrals, the Commission recommends an action to the Council, which has final authority.

Agendas and staff reports are <u>posted online</u> and emailed to our mailing list on the Friday afternoon before each meeting. They can also be viewed in person from 7:30 am – 4 pm at the Planning Department office in the Metro Office Building at 800 2nd Avenue South. <u>Subscribe to the agenda mailing list</u>

Planning Commission meetings are shown live on the Metro Nashville Network, Comcast channel 3, <u>streamed online live</u>, and <u>posted on YouTube</u>, usually on the day after the meeting.

Writing to the Commission

Comments on any agenda item can be mailed, hand-delivered, faxed, or emailed to the Planning Department by noon on meeting day. Written comments can also be brought to the Planning Commission meeting and distributed during the public hearing. Please provide 15 copies of any correspondence brought to the meeting.

Mailing Address: Metro Planning Department, 800 2nd Avenue South, P.O. Box 196300, Nashville, TN 37219-6300

Fax: (615) 862-7130

E-mail: planning.commissioners@nashville.gov

Speaking to the Commission

Anyone can speak before the Commission during a public hearing. A Planning Department staff member presents each case, followed by the applicant, community members opposed to the application, and community members in favor.

Community members may speak for two minutes each. Representatives of neighborhood groups or other organizations may speak for five minutes if written notice is received before the meeting. Applicants may speak for ten minutes, with the option of reserving two minutes for rebuttal after public comments are complete. Councilmembers may speak at the beginning of the meeting, after an item is presented by staff, or during the public hearing on that Item, with no time limit.

If you intend to speak during a meeting, you will be asked to fill out a short "Request to Speak" form.

Items set for consent or deferral will be listed at the start of the meeting.

Meetings are conducted in accordance with the Commission's Rules and Procedures.

Legal Notice

As information for our audience, if you are not satisfied with a decision made by the Planning Commission today, you may appeal the decision by petitioning for a writ of cert with the Davidson County Chancery or Circuit Court. Your appeal must be filed within 60 days of the date of the entry of the Planning Commission's decision. To ensure that your appeal is filed in a timely manner, and that all procedural requirements have been met, please be advised that you should contact independent legal counsel.

The Planning Department does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, religion, creed or disability in admission to, access to, or operations of its programs, services, or activities. Discrimination against any person in recruitment, examination, appointment, training, promotion, retention, discipline or any other employment practices because of non-merit factors shall be prohibited. For ADA inquiries, contact Josie Bass, ADA Compliance Coordinator, at (615) 862-7150 or e-mail her at josie.bass@nashville.gov. For Title VI inquiries, contact Human Relations at (615) 880-3370. For all employment-related inquiries, contact Human Resources at (615) 862-6640.

MEETING AGENDA

A: CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 4:02 p.m.

B: ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Mr. Haynes moved and Ms. Blackshear seconded the motion to adopt the agenda. (6-0)

C: APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2017 MINUTES

Dr. Sims moved and Mr. Haynes seconded the motion to approve the September 28, 2017 minutes. (6-0)

Approved. (6-0)

Resolution No. RS2017-330

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission has **Approved the September 28, 2017 Minutes. (6-**

D: RECOGNITION OF COUNCILMEMBERS

E: ITEMS FOR DEFERRAL / WITHDRAWAL

- 1a. 2017CP-010-002

 GREEN HILLS-MIDTOWN COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT
- 1b. 2017SP-045-001
 ALEXANDER SP
- 3. 2016SP-098-001
- 4. 2017SP-074-001

 MARSHALL CROSSING SP
- 5. **2017SP-080-001** SOUTHPOINT SP
- 6. 2017NHL-001-002 DALEBROOK 37206
- 7. **2017S-199-001**MOUNTAIN SPRINGS
- 8. 2017S-225-001
 ELDER PLACE SUBDIVISION RESUB OF LOT 1
- 9. 2016Z-077PR-001
- 10. 2017Z-037PR-001
- 12a. 2017CP-012-003
 SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT

- 12b. 2017SP-090-001 14899 OLD HICKORY BLVD SP
- 14. 2017S-228-001 AMQUI PLACE SECTION 3
- 15. 142-66P-004
 800 NORTH GALLATIN PIKE

Mr. Haynes moved and Dr. Sims seconded the motion to approve the Deferred and Withdrawn Items. (6-0)

Ms. Blackshear recused herself from Items 5, 12a, 12b, and 15.

F: CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: Items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on at a single time. No individual public hearing will be held, nor will the Commission debate these items unless a member of the audience or the Commission requests that the item be removed from the Consent Agenda.

- 2. 2017S-182-001 FALLS SUBDIVISION
- 11. 2017Z-096PR-001
- 16. 69-83P-001
 HICKORY VILLAGE PUD (AMENDMENT)
- 17. 2017Z-100PR-001
- 18. 2017Z-101PR-001
- 19. 2017Z-102PR-001
- 20. 2017Z-103PR-001
- 21. 2017Z-104PR-001
- 22. Renewal Contract for Peter Bird.
- 23. 2018 Planning Commission filing deadline & meeting schedule.
- 24. A Resolution authorizing the expenditure of \$40,000 from the Advance Planning and Research Fund for an Transfer of Development Rights Study between the Metropolitan Planning Commission and Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.
- 28. Accept the Director's Report and Approve Administrative Items

Mr. Haynes moved and Ms. Blackshear seconded the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. (6-0)

G: ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED

1a. 2017CP-010-002

GREEN HILLS-MIDTOWN COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT

Council District 25 (Russ Pulley) Staff Reviewer: Anna Grider

A request to amend the Green Hills-Midtown Community Plan by amending the Community Character Policy to change from T3 Suburban Residential Corridor (T3-RC) Policy to Transition (TR) Policy on property located at 2041 Overhill Drive, at the southeast corner of Overhill Drive and Hillsboro Pike, zoned Residential RM20 (approximately 0.43 acres), requested by Baker Donelson, applicant; Dube and Whitefield Properties and O.I.C. Alexander, owners. (See associated case # 2017SP-045-001)

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017CP-010-002 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (6-0)

1b. 2017SP-045-001

ALEXANDER SP

Council District 25 (Russ Pulley) Staff Reviewer: Gene Burse

A request to rezone from RM20 to SP zoning on property located at 2041 Overhill Drive, at the southeast corner of Hillsboro Pike and Overhill Drive (0.43 acres), to permit five multi-family residential units and a medical office use, requested by Baker Donelson, applicant; Dube and Whitefield Properties, LLC and O.I.C. Alexander, owners. (See associated case # 2017CP-010-002)

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017SP-045-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (6-0)

2. 2017S-182-001

FALLS SUBDIVISION

Council District 01 (Nick Leonardo) Staff Reviewer: Abbie Rickoff

A request for concept plan approval to create up to 71 cluster lots on a portion of property located at 7305 Whites Creek Pike, approximately 2,700 feet south of Morgan Road, zoned RS15 and CL (34.5 acres), requested by Land Solutions Company, LLC, applicant; Clayton HC, Inc., owner.

Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions including a variance to the standards for development in primary conservation land, and a variance to the standard for depth of the screened area.

APPLICANT REQUEST

Create 71 residential cluster lots.

Concept Plan

A request for concept plan approval to create up to 71 cluster lots on a portion of property located at 7305 Whites Creek Pike, approximately 2,700 feet south of Morgan Road, zoned Single-Family Residential (RS15) and Commercial Limited (CL) (34.5 acres).

Existing Zoning

<u>Single-Family Residential (RS15)</u> requires a minimum 15,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 2.47 dwelling units per acre. *RS15 would permit a maximum of 85units. However, application of the Subdivision Regulations may result in fewer units on this property.*

Commercial Limited (CL) is intended for retail, consumer service, financial, restaurant, and office uses.

BACKGROUND

In 2005, the Planning Commission approved with conditions a preliminary plat (Falls Subdivision) that included 72 single-family cluster lots, two commercial lots, and one multi-family lot on this property (approximately 75 total acres). Under Metro's Subdivision Regulations in effect in 2005, preliminary plats were valid for a period of two years. The Falls Subdivision preliminary plat approval expired in 2007, prior to submittal of a final plat. Since the time that the preliminary plat was approved by the Planning Commission but before the preliminary plat expired, the Metro Subdivision Regulations were amended to a 3-step process (Concept Plan – Final Site Plan – Final Plat). After plat expiration, a new concept plan was never submitted to Metro Planning for review.

Site preparation work, including grading and other infrastructure improvements, has taken place on site. This includes, but may not be limited to, partially constructed roadways, domestic water, sanitary sewer, storm water, and underground electric.

Since the time of plat expiration, the land use policies across Davidson County were updated in 2015 with the adoption of NashvilleNext to the new Community Character Manual (CCM) categories, including the application of Rural Neighborhood policies to the Joelton Community Plan. The Subdivision Regulations were subsequently amended in 2016 to create Rural Character Subdivision standards, which are intended to provide more detailed guidance for the subdivision of land in Rural Neighborhood policy areas. This proposal is therefore being reviewed against the Rural Character Subdivision standards.

JOELTON COMMUNITY PLAN

T2 Rural Maintenance (T2 RM) is intended to maintain rural character as a permanent choice for living within Davidson County and not as a holding or transitional zone for future urban development. T2 RM areas have established low-density residential, agricultural, and institutional development patterns. Although there may be areas with sewer service or that are zoned or developed for higher densities than is generally appropriate for rural areas, the intent is for sewer services or higher density zoning or development not to be expanded. Instead, new development in T2 RM areas should be through the use of a Conservation Subdivision at a maximum gross density of 1 dwelling unit/2 acres with individual lots no smaller than the existing zoning and a significant amount of permanently preserved open space.

<u>T2 Rural Neighborhood Center (T2 NC)</u> is intended to maintain, enhance, and create rural neighborhood centers that fit in with rural character and provide consumer goods and services for surrounding rural communities. T2 NC areas are small-scale pedestrian friendly areas generally located at intersections. They contain commercial, mixed use, residential, and institutional uses.

<u>Conservation (CO)</u> is intended to preserve environmentally sensitive land features through protection and remediation. CO policy applies in all Transect Categories except T1 Natural, T5 Center, and T6 Downtown. CO policy identifies land with sensitive environmental features including, but not limited to, steep slopes, floodway/floodplains, rare or special plant or animal

habitats, wetlands and unstable or problem soils. The guidance for preserving or enhancing these features varies with what Transect they are in and whether or not they have already been disturbed.

PLAN DETAILS

This request is for concept plan approval to create 71 cluster lots on a portion of property (approximately 34.5 of 75.75 acres) located at 7305 Whites Creek Pike. The property is located on the west side of Whites Creek Pike, north of Interstate-24, and is currently vacant. The site's frontage along Whites Creek Pike is heavily forested. The 34.5 acres slated for residential subdivision are located on the northern half of the existing property, which is primarily zoned RS15. There is an area of CL-zoned property near the front of the site along the main entry. A stream and stream buffer bisect the site from the southern half of the property, which is zoned both RM6 (Multi-family) and CL zoning and is not included in this concept plan. Along Whites Creek Pike, Interstate-24 is generally the dividing line between single-family and vacant properties (north) and mixed residential and non-residential uses (south). The site is located in primarily T2 Rural Maintenance and Conservation policies. The presence of Conservation policy recognizes steep slopes, stream buffers, and potential problem soils. A small area of T2 Rural Neighborhood Center is present at the front of the site where the CL zoning exists.

Lots are clustered down to the RS7.5 zoning district and range in size from approximately 7,500 square feet to approximately 13,000 square feet. All lots will front new internal roads accessed via an entry road, Overlook Lane, located at the southeastern portion of the site. The internal road network includes a cul-de-sac near the western property line, and several stub roads to the north and south for future connectivity. Although cul-de-sacs are generally discouraged in rural policy areas, they may be permitted in instances where natural features exist that are not desirable to be removed.

Approximately 5.2 acres at the front of the site have been set aside as permanent open space through a screened area where the existing vegetation will be retained. Additional open space is incorporated throughout the development, including stormwater management devices and natural areas outside of the development footprint. A class "C" buffer has been provided along the northern property line between the site and a residential parcel to the

north. Critical lots, identifying natural or manmade features that may affect the feasibility of construction, have been identified on the site plan. Building footprints have been identified on all lots, including critical lots.

Sidewalks are provided on both sides of the new internal roads, consistent with local street standards.

ANALYSIS

Chapter 4 of the Subdivision Regulations, Rural Character Subdivisions, regulates the subdivision of land in T2 Rural Neighborhood policies, with the intent of ensuring that new development is in harmony with the established rural character of these areas.

Prior to design of any subdivision plan with new streets or joint access easements, Primary Conservation Land must be identified. Primary Conservation Areas include a range of sensitive environmental features, including problem soils and areas over 10,000 square feet of contiguous slopes over 15 percent. The intent of identifying Primary Conservation Land is to minimize the impact of development or disturbance to environmental resources through protection and preservation. Development should occur outside of the Primary Conservation Areas. Five lots (lots 19, 20, 21, 22, and 23) nearest the western property line are located in Primary Conservation in areas identified as having steep slopes and/or problem soils. These five lots, identified as Primary Conservation area, are within the development footprint and will not be preserved and set aside from development.

Section 4-2.5 permits two Character Options for the development of land in Rural Neighborhood policies: Countryside Character Option and Agricultural Character Option. In this case, the Agricultural Character Option is not appropriate because the primary function of the subdivision is not for agricultural use. Therefore, the Countryside Character Option is the most appropriate option. Under the Countryside Character Option, two alternatives exist: Open Alternative and Screened Alternative. The frontage of the property along Whites Creek Pike is heavily screened by existing vegetation and topography; therefore, staff reviewed the plat against the following Screened Alternative criteria:

a. Lot Screening

Section 4.2.5 includes conditions and standards for the screening required to minimize visibility of the proposed lots from the existing roadway network.

Lots shall be designed to minimize visibility from the existing roadway network. Preservation of existing tree stands, existing topography, natural berms, rock outcroppings, and other features that currently provide visual screening shall be prioritized as the preferred means to minimize visibility. The concept plan/final plat shall include a landscape plan stamped by a landscape architect indicating the method to minimize the visibility from the adjacent roadway network. The Planning Commission shall determine whether the proposed screening method is sufficient to achieve the purposes of screening the development within a short (2-4 year) period and may require a bond to ensure the protection or completion of this improvement. The building envelopes shall be shown on the concept plan/final plat as a means to evaluate the effectiveness of existing or proposed visual screening techniques. All existing or proposed screening areas shall be designated as Conservation Land. The depth of the screened area shall be equal to the farthest building setback of primary structures on the surrounding parcels plus 300 feet. If no surrounding parcels are developed, then the screened area shall be 500 feet from the public right of way.

For the purposes of this analysis, "surrounding parcels" is defined by the Subdivision Regulations as the five R, RS, AR2A, or AG parcels oriented to the same block face on either side of the parcel proposed for subdivision, or to the end of the same block face, whichever is less. A majority of the surrounding parcels are developed. Therefore, the required screened area shall be equal to the furthest building setback of the primary structures on the surrounding parcels plus 300 feet. One of the surrounding developed parcels contains a non-residential land use and was not included in the lot screening calculation. Based on the building setbacks of surrounding residential parcels, the required depth of the screened area is approximately 630 feet.

The plan depicts a large open space area to remain undisturbed, along the entire Whites Creek Pike development frontage. The open space contains a screened area with a dense tree canopy that will be retained, in addition to new canopy and understory trees which will be planted in previously-graded areas along Overlook Lane. The applicant provided a plant schedule with information regarding the number, type and size of trees and other vegetation. A mixture of deciduous and evergreen tree selections will provide a dense screen to minimize the visibility of the building envelopes from Whites Creek Pike. The screened area encompassing the existing and proposed vegetation is approximately 300 from the public right of way where approximately 630 feet of depth for the screened area is required.

Surrounding residential parcels	Approximate building setback of primary structure	Farthest building setback plus 300 feet	Approximate required screening depth	Approximate proposed screening depth
7274	38 ft.			
7629	104 ft.			
7633	330 ft.	630 ft.	630	300

b. Street Lights

Not applicable to this application

c. Cluster lot option

Development through the Countryside (Screened Alternative) Character Option may utilize the provisions of Cluster Lot Option within the Development Footprint area. This subdivision meets the provisions of the Cluster Lot Option, consistent with Section 17.12.090 of the Metro Zoning Code.

In cluster lot subdivisions, a minimum of 15 percent of each phase of the development shall be open space. This concept plan provides approximately 15.7 acres of open space (approximately 45%), including stormwater management areas which are generally located near the stream buffer.

d. Use of Lot Screening Areas

Not applicable to this application

Variance Requests

The applicant requests two variances from the Subdivision Regulations. The first variance request is from Section 4-2.2 for locating the development footprint within Primary Conservation Land. The second variance request is from Section 4-2.5 to provide a screened area that extends approximate 300 feet from the public right of way where 630 feet is required.

Section 1-11, Variances, permits the Planning Commission to grant variances to the Subdivision Regulations when it finds that extraordinary hardships or practical difficulties may results from strict compliance with the regulations. While the regulations grant the Commission the authority to grant variances, the regulations state that "such variance shall not have the effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of the Subdivision Regulations." In order to grant a variance the Commission must find that:

- 1. The granting of the variance shall not be detrimental to the public safety, health, or welfare or injurious to other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located.
- 2. The conditions upon which the request for a variance is based are unique to the property for which the variance is sought and are not applicable generally to other property.
- 3. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the specific property involved, a particular hardship to the owner would result, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of these regulations were carried out.
- 4. The variance shall not in any manner vary from the provisions of the adopted General Plan, including its constituent elements, the Major Street Plan, or the Zoning Code for Metropolitan Nashville and Davidson County (Zoning Code).

Variance Analysis

The applicant is requesting variances under Section 1-11, which permits the Planning Commission to grant variances to the Subdivision Regulations when it finds that extraordinary hardships or practical difficulties may result from strict compliance with the regulations.

Variance Request #1

The first variance request is from Section 4-2.2, Preservation of Conservation Land. Unless an exception is granted under Section 4-2.3, all Primary Conservation Areas described in Section 4-2.1 shall be preserved and set aside through appropriate means such as conservation easements and/or open space. Primary Conservation Land, as described in Section 4-2.1, identifies ten (10) instances where areas shall be preserved and set aside from development, including:

- (c) Areas over 10,000 square feet of contiguous slopes over 15 percent, and
- (d) Problem soil, as listed in Section 17.28.050 of the Metro Code

Lots 19, 20, 21, 22, and 23 are located in Primary Conservation Land and include building envelopes in areas identified in Section 4-2.1(c) and (d), which is not consistent with the provisions of the Development Standards. However, the site is not in its original state where the impact of development in Primary Conservation Land may be significant. During prior construction, the site was graded, stormwater pipes and detention ponds were constructed, and underground utilities were installed. Approximately 70% of the site work has been completed with the storm water infrastructure in place. Although no significant grading is anticipated, lots 19-23 are still identified as Critical Lots, meaning a Critical Lot Plan is required prior to application of a building permit to ensure for protection of the slopes within the lot areas as outlined in the Metro Zoning Ordinance.

It is also worth noting that the original version of this Concept Plan included eight additional lots, located east of lots 19-23, that were also located in Primary Conservation Land due to contiguous areas of steep slopes. At staff's request, the layout was modified by shifting these lots outside of steep slopes. Planning staff consulted with Metro Stormwater and Metro Water to evaluate the implication of removing the five remaining lots in Primary Conservation Land. It was determined, after consultation with Metro agencies and the applicant, that there would be significant work in removing the existing infrastructure already created for each lot, contributing to additional land disturbance than if the lots remained intact. Should these 5 lots be removed, there would also likely be changes to the main line infrastructure because of a reduced demand on the utilities. The original design was based on the use of the water by the number of lots originally proposed. Removing lots 19-23 at the back of the site, where the topography is lower than the rest of the site, could have a negative impact on water quality for the water main, potentially impacting the public health, safety, and welfare of property owners.

Per Section 4-2.2, there are two instances in which the Planning Commission may approve an exception to permit the development footprint within the Primary Conservation Land:

- a. The Planning Commission may approve an exception to permit land initially identified as a Primary Conservation area within the development footprint for public streets, joint access easements or other infrastructure, but not within lots, provided the development of such area minimizes impacts to environmental resources.
- b. The Planning Commission may approve an exception for lots within areas over 10,000 square feet of contiguous slopes between 15 and 20 percent, provided there is no grading shown on the concept plans and/or final site plan within slopes over 15 percent. For lots within continuous slopes between 15 and 20 percent, grading for the driveway and structure shall be shown on a critical lot plan and shall tie into the natural grade within ten feet of the structure or driveway. Driveway width shall be a maximum of 16 feet. Grading is not permitted in areas over 20% slopes.

Exceptions may be granted where the intent is to minimize the impact of the development footprint on the native (undisturbed) site conditions, particularly in environmentally sensitive areas. In this case, the site has already been disturbed with the grading substantially complete. No grading is shown on the Concept Plan because the existing topographical conditions reflect the already-graded site conditions. If lots 19 through 23 were removed rather than retained, the impact would be much greater on the site's physical surroundings and may also be detrimental to public health, safety, and welfare of property owners.

Variance Request #2

The second variance request is from Section 4-2.5, Screened Alternative. The depth of the screened area at the front of the site is approximately 300 feet from Whites Creek Pike. It would be difficult to meet the minimum approximate 630-foot depth of the screened area from the public right-of-way because of partially-constructed roads located with the required screened area. The approximate 630-foot depth for the screened area is required based on the farthest building setback of surrounding parcels plus 300 feet. In this instance, the farthest building setback of surrounding parcels is a mobile home set back approximately 330 feet from Whites Creek Pike. While the setbacks vary along Whites Creek Pike, buildings in the vicinity are generally located closer to White's Creek Pike to take advantage of areas without steep slopes. Additionally, most of the developed parcels in the vicinity lack existing vegetation between the buildings and the road, making the buildings more visible from the street.

In this case, the original version of this Concept Plan did not include permanent open space located at the front of the site, currently shown in a conservation easement. Approximate 4.2 acres north of Overlook Lane, partially zoned Commercial Limited, was slated for future commercial development and was not included in the proposed subdivision boundaries. In order to meet the Rural Character Subdivision Regulations, the applicant added the 4.2 acres to the subdivision boundaries, securing over 5 acres of permanent open space at the front of the site. The open space spans the majority of the 300-foot screened area, with the exception of an existing water quality/detention pond and two small areas at the front reserved for entry signage.

The proposed screened area includes existing vegetation along the road, which will be permanently preserved as open space, helping to minimize the visibility of any structures within the building envelopes from the road. The intent of the regulation requiring the screened area is met and the granting of a variance will not be detrimental to public health, safety or welfare or injurious to other properties.

Variance summary

The Preliminary Plat was approved under different Subdivision Regulations and land use policies no longer in effect under the adopted Community Character Manual and different Subdivision Regulations. Although the site is now located in T2 Rural Neighborhood policy, the property is adjacent to Interstate-24, with commercial and multi-family development proposed south of the site. The proposed residential subdivision is located approximately 500 feet from the I-24 ramp, where the impacts of additional density may be supported through the existing road network, particularly south of the Interstate where there is a mixture of residential and non-residential uses.

The screened area at the front of the site provides a 300' setback along Whites Creek Pike, which is greater than most of the residential setbacks in the vicinity. The open space includes over 5 acres at the front of the site that will be permanently protected with existing and proposed vegetation. This area, primarily commercially-zoned, was not initially included in the initial subdivision boundaries and was intended to develop as an independent commercial space. Securing this area as open space, rather than a commercial outparcel, is consistent with the intent of the screened alternative development standards as it will utilize existing vegetative screening to minimize views from Whites Creek Pike.

As explained throughout this report, the site is not in its natural state. The site has been substantially constructed and has remained vacant for approximately 10 years. Allowing the existing infrastructure to remain in place will minimize additional major disturbance in environmentally sensitive areas, meeting the intent of the Rural Character Subdivision regulations. Strict application of the subdivision regulations may have significant ramifications on the sensitive environmental resources, which may be detrimental to public health, safety or welfare to property owners. For these reasons, staff recommends that variances from Sections 4-2.2 and 4-2.5 of the Subdivision Regulations be granted by the Metro Planning Commission.

FIRE MARSHAL RECOMMENDATION

Approve with conditions

 The infrastructure of this subdivision was previously in place and approved in 2007. Provide flow data for subdivision pre-approval. Fire Code issues will be addressed in the permit phase.

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION

Approve with conditions

• Bearing Information needs to be shown on the Final Plat.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION Approve

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION

Approve with conditions

In accordance with the findings of the TIS, developer of phase 1 shall install the following roadway improvements.

- In conjunction with the proposed single-family homes, the project access should be constructed to include one entering lane and two exiting lanes, striped as separate left and right turn lanes. Each of the exiting turn lanes should include at a minimum 100 feet of storage with appropriate transition. Also, the project access should be constructed with adequate turning radii for school buses, moving trucks, and delivery vehicles.
- In conjunction with the proposed single-family homes, the existing five-lane cross-section on Whites Creek Pike should be extended north approximately 400 feet to the project access with appropriate northern transition to Whites Creek Pk. A northbound left turn lane on Whites creek Pk with appropriate left turn lane storage for phase 1 shall be constructed. Additional traffic analysis may be required to determine appropriate LTL storage with phase 2 development. Main access road shall be located to ensure adequate NB left turn lane storage can be provided with the addition of phase 2 development and future signalization of main access. Developer shall dedicate additional ROW on access road to allow construction of an EB thru travel lane when opposing property is developed.
- Developer shall provide adequate sight distance. For a speed of 50 mph, the minimum stopping sight distance is 425 feet. The minimum intersection sight distance is 555 feet. Developer shall provide a sight distance exhibit with Construction documents.
- The site's internal traffic should be controlled by stop signs as shown in Figure 10 of the TIS.
- Developer shall dedicate ROW along Whites Creek Pk frontage in order that a SB right turn lane can be install with future development in phase 2.

WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION Approve with conditions

As an updated availability study has been submitted, MWS approves this case as a Concept Plan only. This
development has significant public utility line concerns, which need to be addressed before the Development Plan
is approved. The applicant will need to submit new construction plans, due to the condition of the unfinished water
and sewer mains within the site. These must be approved, prior to Development Plan approval. If the revised
study reveals additional capacity fees, these required capacity fees must be paid prior to Development Plan
approval.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with conditions including a variance to the standards for development in primary conservation land, and a variance to the standard for depth of the screened area.

CONDITIONS

- 1. All conditions from Metro Traffic and Metro Water Services must completed or bonded prior to the recording of the final plat.
- 2. All stub roads must be extended to the site boundaries for future connectivity. This shall be reflected on the final site plan and final plat.
- 3. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply must be met prior to the issuance of building permits.
- 4. A tree protection plan shall be provided with the final site plan application to indicate preservation of trees within common open space and buffer areas.
- 5. On the final site plan, replace the "Conservation Easement" note at the front of site to the following note: "Open Space to remain undisturbed".
- 6. A Landscape Plan shall be submitted with the final site plan. The Landscape Plan shall include a screened area of existing and proposed vegetation at the front of the site, approximately 300 feet in depth, to remain as permanent open space. The Landscape Plan shall substantially match the Landscape Plans provided with the Concept Plan.
- 7. Additional landscaping shall be added along the western side of Gayron Drive, opposite the existing water quality and detention pond on the eastern side of Gayron Drive, for additional screening at the front of the site.
- 8. Any lots designated as critical lots shall be developed in compliance with the critical lot requirements pursuant to Section 17.28.030 of the Metro Zoning Code.
- 9. The final site plan shall be accompanied by a geotechnical report for any lots identified as containing problem soils pursuant to Section 17.28.050 of the Metro Zoning Code.
- 10. Add the following note to all open spaces except for designated recreational areas (this note should be provided in the designated recreational areas): All existing trees in designated open spaces shall be preserved as permanent open space. These areas shall remain undisturbed.
- 11. Two additional canopy trees shall be provided at the rear of lots 67, 68, 69, 70, and 71 and lots 1 through 18 along the northern property line. Tree specifications shall be provided in the plant schedule and shall be consistent in size, height, and species with the canopy trees provided throughout this development.
- 12. The final site plan/ building permit site plan shall depict the required public sidewalks, any required grass strip or frontage zone and the location of all existing and proposed vertical obstructions within the required sidewalk and grass strip or frontage zone. Prior to the issuance of use and occupancy permits, existing vertical obstructions shall be relocated outside of the required sidewalk. Vertical obstructions are only permitted within the required grass strip or frontage zone.
- 13. Pursuant to 2-3.5.e of the Metro Subdivision Regulations, because this application has received conditional approval from the Planning Commission, that approval shall expire unless revised plans showing the conditions on the face of the plans are submitted prior to or with any application for a final site plan or final plat.

Approved with conditions including a variance to the standards for development in primary conservation land, and a variance to the standard for depth of the screened area. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-331

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2017S-182-001 is Approved with conditions including a variance to the standards for development in primary conservation land, and a variance to the standard for depth of the screened area. (6-0)

- 1. All conditions from Metro Traffic and Metro Water Services must completed or bonded prior to the recording of the final plat.
- 2. All stub roads must be extended to the site boundaries for future connectivity. This shall be reflected on the final site plan and final plat.
- 3. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply must be met prior to the issuance of building permits.
- 4. A tree protection plan shall be provided with the final site plan application to indicate preservation of trees within common open space and buffer areas.
- 5. On the final site plan, replace the "Conservation Easement" note at the front of site to the following note: "Open Space to remain undisturbed".
- 6. A Landscape Plan shall be submitted with the final site plan. The Landscape Plan shall include a screened area of existing and proposed vegetation at the front of the site, approximately 300 feet in depth, to remain as permanent open space. The Landscape Plan shall substantially match the Landscape Plans provided with the Concept Plan.
- 7. Additional landscaping shall be added along the western side of Gayron Drive, opposite the existing water quality and detention pond on the eastern side of Gayron Drive, for additional screening at the front of the site.
- 8. Any lots designated as critical lots shall be developed in compliance with the critical lot requirements pursuant to Section 17.28.030 of the Metro Zoning Code.

- 9. The final site plan shall be accompanied by a geotechnical report for any lots identified as containing problem soils pursuant to Section 17.28.050 of the Metro Zoning Code.
- 10. Add the following note to all open spaces except for designated recreational areas (this note should be provided in the designated recreational areas): All existing trees in designated open spaces shall be preserved as permanent open space. These areas shall remain undisturbed.
- 11. Two additional canopy trees shall be provided at the rear of lots 67, 68, 69, 70, and 71 and lots 1 through 18 along the northern property line. Tree specifications shall be provided in the plant schedule and shall be consistent in size, height, and species with the canopy trees provided throughout this development.
- 12. The final site plan/ building permit site plan shall depict the required public sidewalks, any required grass strip or frontage zone and the location of all existing and proposed vertical obstructions within the required sidewalk and grass strip or frontage zone. Prior to the issuance of use and occupancy permits, existing vertical obstructions shall be relocated outside of the required sidewalk. Vertical obstructions are only permitted within the required grass strip or frontage zone.
- 13. Pursuant to 2-3.5.e of the Metro Subdivision Regulations, because this application has received conditional approval from the Planning Commission, that approval shall expire unless revised plans showing the conditions on the face of the plans are submitted prior to or with any application for a final site plan or final plat.

3. 2016SP-098-001

Council District 05 (Scott Davis)
Staff Reviewer: Latisha Birkeland

A request to rezone from SP to SP zoning on properties located at 910, and 912 North 2nd Street, at the northwest corner of Cleveland Street and North 2nd Street (0.32 acres), to permit uses limited to one single-family or one two-family unit per parcel.

Staff Recommendation: Defer Indefinitely.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission has deferred 2016SP-098-001 indefinitely. (6-0)

4. 2017SP-074-001

MARSHALL CROSSING SP

Council District 05 (Scott Davis) Staff Reviewer: Patrick Napier

A request to rezone from RS5 to SP-R zoning on properties located at 1699, 1701, 1703 and 1705 Lischey Avenue, at the northeast corner of Lischey Avenue and Marshall Street (0.87 acres), to permit up to 15 detached multi-family residential units, requested by Smith Gee Studio, applicant; Heather Anderson, owner.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017SP-074-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (6-0)

5. 2017SP-080-001

SOUTHPOINT SP

Council District 31 (Fabian Bedne) Staff Reviewer: Shawn Shepard

A request to rezone from AR2a to SP-MR zoning on property located at 6424 and 6434 Pettus Road and a portion of property located at 6444 Pettus Road and Nolensville Pike (unnumbered), approximately 600 feet northeast of Nolensville Pike (22.03 acres), to permit a maximum of 40 single-family residential units and 130 multi-family residential units, requested by Civil Site Design Group, PLLC, applicant; Alvin Beerman, David R. Hill, H.E. and David R. Hill, and Barbara Wardlaw, owners.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017SP-080-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (5-0-1)

6. 2017NHL-001-002

DALEBROOK 37206

Council District 06 (Brett Withers)
Staff Reviewer: Gene Burse

A request for development plan approval on a portion of property located at 901 Dalebrook Lane, at the northeast corner of Dalebrook Lane and Eastland Avenue, zoned One and Two-Family Residential (R10) and within a Neighborhood Landmark Overlay District (0.79 acres), to permit general office and medical office uses, requested by Design Build Partners, applicant; Greater Grace Temple Community Church, owner.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the November 9, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017NHL-001-002 to the November 9, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (6-0)

7. 2017S-199-001

MOUNTAIN SPRINGS

Council District 32 (Jacobia Dowell) Staff Reviewer: Patrick Napier

A request for concept plan approval to create 43 single family lots on a portion of property located at 5000 Mountain Springs Road, approximately 1,100 feet northwest of Hobson Pike, zoned RM15 and within the Murfreesboro Pike Urban Design Overlay District (12.22 acres), requested by Kimley-Horn, applicant; Belz-McDowell Properties, owner. **Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.**

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017S-199-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (6-0)

8. 2017S-225-001

ELDER PLACE SUBDIVISION RESUB OF LOT 1

Council District 25 (Russ Pulley) Staff Reviewer: Gene Burse

A request for final plat approval to revise a note to permit a duplex on property located at 3800 Estes Road, at the southeast corner of Elder Place and Estes Road, zoned R20 (0.92 acres), requested by Dale and Associates, applicant; John Loudenslager and Michelle Cunningham, owners.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017S-225-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (6-0)

9. 2016Z-077PR-001

Council District 05 (Scott Davis)

Staff Reviewer: Levi Hill

A request to rezone from RS5 to R6-A zoning for various properties west of Rosedale Avenue, (4.5 acres), requested by Councilmember Scott Davis, applicant; various property owners.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2016Z-077PR-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (6-0)

10. 2017Z-037PR-001

Council District 05 (Scott Davis) Staff Reviewer: Latisha Birkeland

A request to rezone from CS and RS5 to RM20-A, MUL-A, R6-A, and RM9-A zoning for various properties south of E Trinity Lane, (36.05 acres), requested by Councilmember Scott Davis, applicant; various property owners.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017Z-037PR-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (6-0)

11. 2017Z-096PR-001

Council District 21 (Ed Kindall) Staff Reviewer: Gene Burse

A request to rezone from RS5 to RM15-A zoning for properties located at 2700 and 2702 Torbett Street, at the northwest corner of 27th Ave N and Torbett Street (0.42 acres), requested by S & ME, Inc., applicant; Max Khazanov and Radius Rentals, LLC, owners.

Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions.

APPLICANT REQUEST

Zone change from RS5 to RM15-A.

Zone Change

A request to rezone from Single-Family Residential (RS5) to Multi-Family Residential-Alternative (RM15-A) zoning for properties located at 2700 and 2702 Torbett Street, at the northwest corner of 27th Ave N and Torbett Street (0.42 acres).

Existing Zoning

<u>Single-Family Residential (RS5)</u> requires a minimum 5,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 7.41 dwelling units per acre. *RS5 would permit 2 lots for a maximum of 2 units.*

Proposed Zoning

<u>Multi-Family Residential-Alternative (RM15-A)</u> is intended for single-family, duplex, and multi-family dwellings at a density of 15 dwelling units per acre and is designed to create walkable neighborhoods through the use of appropriate building placement and bulk standards. *RM15-A would permit a maximum of 6 units.*

NORTH NASHVILLE COMMUNITY PLAN

<u>T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving (T4 NE)</u> NE policy is intended to create and enhance urban neighborhoods that are compatible with the general character of existing urban neighborhoods as characterized by their development pattern, building form, land use and associated public realm, with opportunities for housing choice and improved pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity. The resulting development pattern may have higher densities than existing urban neighborhoods and/or smaller lots sizes, with a broader range of housing types providing housing choice. This reflects the scarcity of easily developable land (without sensitive environmental features) and the cost of developing housing.

Consistent with Policy?

Yes. The proposed RM15-A zoning district is consistent with the T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving policy at this location. The RM15-A zoning district allows for multi-family residential uses which are compatible with this policy area and provide for an additional housing type in an existing urban area. Alternative zoning district provide design criteria such as alley access only when alleys are present and raised foundations.

ANALYSIS

The properties are located at the northwest corner of Torbett Street and 27th Avenue North in the McKissack Park neighborhood of the North Nashville Community Plan area. The interior of the neighborhood consists of existing single-family residential and two-family residential uses, open space (McKissack Park), and vacant land adjacent to the properties in this application. Multi-family and commercial uses are located along the major corridors of Clifton Avenue and 28th Avenue North.

The properties are currently zoned RS5, which permit single-family residential units. Both properties are located two blocks south of a major corridor and each has access to an existing alley that intersects with 27th Avenue North. The proposed RM15-A zoning district will serve as an appropriate transition from the more intense zoning districts located

along Clifton Avenue and 28th Avenue within an adjacent policy area. The proposed RM15-A zoning district will provide housing choice, which T4 Urban Neighborhood policy promotes, within the immediate area. The proposed RM15-A zoning district provide design criteria for the site which include alley only access and raised foundations among other criteria. The requested rezoning is consistent with the residential nature of the T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving policy area at this location.

FIRE DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION N/A

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION N/A

WATER SERVICES N/A

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION N/A

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION Approve with conditions

• TIS (Traffic Impact Study) may be required with redevelopment

Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: RS5

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single-Family Residential (210)	0.42	8.71 D	3 U	29	3	4

Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: RM15-A

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Multi-Family Residential (230)	0.42		6 U	46	5	5

Traffic changes between maximum: RS5 and RM15-A

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-	+3 U	+17	+2	+1

METRO SCHOOL BOARD REPORT

Projected student generation existing RS5 district: <u>0</u> Elementary <u>0</u> Middle <u>0</u> High Projected student generation proposed RM15-A district: <u>1</u> Elementary <u>1</u> Middle <u>1</u> High

The proposed RM15-A zoning district will generate three more students than what is typically generated under the existing RS5 zoning district. Students would attend Park Avenue Enhanced Optional Elementary School, McKissack Middle School, and Pearl-Cohn High School. Each school has been identified as having additional capacity. This information is based upon data from the school board last updated November 2016.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommendation is to approve with conditions as the proposed rezoning is consistent with the T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving policy area.

CONDITIONS

1. Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

Approved with conditions. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-332

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2017Z-096PR-001 is Approved with conditions. (6-0)

1. Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

12a. 2017CP-012-003

SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT

Council District 31 (Fabian Bedne)
Staff Reviewer: Justin Wallace

A request to amend the Southeast Community Plan by changing from D District Office Concentration to T3 Suburban Neighborhood Center on property located at 14899 Old Hickory Blvd, at the southwest corner of Old Hickory Blvd and Bell Road, (1.56 acres), requested by Southeast Venture, applicant; Hafiz Yafai and Rashid Muhsin, owners. (See associated case # 2017SP-090-001)

Staff Recommendation: Approve.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017CP-012-003 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (5-0-1)

12b. 2017SP-090-001

14899 OLD HICKORY BLVD SP

Council District 31 (Fabian Bedne) Staff Reviewer: Gene Burse

A request to rezone from AR2a to SP-C zoning on property located at 14899 Old Hickory Blvd, at the southwest corner of Old Hickory Blvd and Bell Road, (0.967 acres), to permit a grocery store, requested by Southeast Venture, applicant; Hafiz Yafai and Rashid Muhsin, owners. (See associated case # 2017CP-012-003)

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017SP-090-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (5-0-1)

13. 2017SP-085-001

5200 NOLENSVILLE PIKE SP

Council District 27 (Davette Blalock) Staff Reviewer: Patrick Napier

A request to rezone from CS and RS10 to SP-C zoning on property located at 5200 Nolensville Pike, at the southeast corner of April Lane and Nolensville Pike (0.82 acres), to permit Automobile sales, used, requested by Jegir Salman, applicant and owner.

Staff Recommendation: Disapprove.

APPLICANT REQUEST

A request to rezone to SP to permit used automobile sales.

Preliminary SP

A request to rezone from Commercial Service (CS) and Single-Family Residential (RS10) to Specific Plan-Commercial (SP-C) zoning on property located at 5200 Nolensville Pike, at the southeast corner of April Lane and Nolensville Pike (0.82 acres), to permit Automobile sales, used.

Existing Zoning

<u>Commercial Service (CS)</u> is intended for retail, consumer service, financial, restaurant, office, self-storage, light manufacturing and small warehouse uses.

<u>Single-Family Residential (RS10)</u> requires a minimum of 10,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 3.7 dwelling units per acre. *RS10 would permit a maximum of 1 unit.*

Proposed Zoning

<u>Specific Plan-Commercial (SP-C)</u> is a zoning district category that provides for additional flexibility of design, including the relationship of streets to buildings, to provide the ability to implement the specific details of the General Plan. This Specific Plan includes commercial uses.

SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY PLAN

T3 Suburban Mixed Use Corridor (T3 CM) is intended to enhance suburban mixed use corridors by encouraging a greater mix of higher density residential and mixed use development along the corridor. T3 CM areas are located along pedestrian friendly, prominent arterial-boulevard and collector-avenue corridors that are served by multiple modes of transportation and are designed and operated to enable safe, attractive, and comfortable access and travel for all users. T3 CM areas provide high access management and are served by highly connected street networks, sidewalks, and existing or planned mass transit.

T3 Suburban Neighborhood Maintenance (T3 NM) is intended to maintain the general character of developed suburban residential neighborhoods. T3 NM areas will experience some change over time, primarily when buildings are expanded or replaced. When this occurs, efforts should be made to retain the existing character of the neighborhood. T3 NM areas have an established development pattern consisting of low- to moderate-density residential development and institutional land uses. Enhancements may be made to improve pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular connectivity.

Consistent with Policy?

No. This SP would introduce a commercial use into a T3 Neighborhood Maintenance policy area which is inconsistent with the goals and objectives of the policy. The T3 NM policy is a residential only policy that does not support commercial uses. While the front portion of the property is currently zoned CS and within a Mixed Use Corridor policy, the expansion of the commercial zoning and use further into the residential area is inappropriate.

ANALYSIS

The requested rezoning expands an existing used automobile sales business which fronts Nolensville Pike. The site contains an existing structure surrounded by pavement which is used for parking automobile inventory. This request seeks to expand the parking area so that additional automobiles can be placed on the site. The area proposed for the expansion is located within a T3 NM policy area. The area proposed for the parking expansion contains approximately 18,525 square feet.

The parcel contains two land use policies: T3 Suburban Mixed Use Corridor and T3 Suburban Neighborhood Maintenance. Each policy contains different goals and objectives for intensity, use, and form. While the use of the property is consistent with the portion of the property currently zoned CS located within the T3 CM policy area, the expansion of the current use into the T3 NM policy area would be inconsistent with the goals of the T3 NM policy which does not support commercial uses.

If the rezoning request were approved Planning would recommend a C-1 landscape buffer along the eastern property line to adequately buffer the expansion of the current property use. A C-1 landscape buffer requires a 30 foot width which includes 4.8 canopy trees, 2.4 understory trees, and 19 shrubs every 100 linear feet. The area required for a C-1 landscape buffer would contain 5,670 square feet which represents 30% of the total area proposed for the expansion of the current use. The applicant has offered to include a landscape buffer within the SP.

The requested rezoning is inconsistent with the T3 NM policy as it will create a commercial intrusion into an existing developed residential single family neighborhood; therefore, staff recommends disapproval.

FIRE DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION N/A

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION N/A

WATER SERVICES

Approve with conditions

Approved as a Preliminary SP only. Further requirements may need to be met before Final SP stage, depending
on what is revealed on the utility/grading plans.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION N/A

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION Approve with conditions

• Traffic study may be required at time of development.

Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: CS

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Retail (814)	0.47	0.6	12,283 SF	564	17	51

Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: RS10

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single-Family Residential (210)	0.35	4.35 D	1 U	10	1	2

Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: SP-C

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Automobile Sales (841)	0.82		319 SF	11	1	1

Traffic changes between maximum: CS, RS10 and SP-C

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-	-	-553	-17	-52

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends disapproval as the proposed use is inconsistent with the goals of the T3 Suburban Neighborhood Maintenance Policy

Councilmember Blalock spoke in favor of the application.

Jegir Salman, 5200 Nolensville Pike, applicant, spoke in favor of the application in order to expand his business.

Joe McCormick, 423 April Lane, spoke in opposition as he is concerned about declining property values.

Chairman Adkins closed the Public Hearing.

Ms. Blackshear spoke in opposition to the application as it is not consistent with policy.

Dr. Sims spoke in opposition to the application as it is not consistent with policy.

Mr. Haynes moved and Ms. Blackshear seconded the motion to disapprove. (6-0)

Disapproved (6-0)

Resolution No. RS2017-333

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2017SP-085-001 is Disapproved. (6-0)

14. 2017S-228-001

AMQUI PLACE SECTION 3

Council District 09 (Bill Pridemore) Staff Reviewer: Patrick Napier

A request for concept plan approval to create nine lots on property located at Park Avenue (unnumbered), approximately 300 feet west of Snow Avenue, zoned RS7.5 (2.3 acres), requested by Dale & Associates, applicant; Paradise Properties, owner.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2017S-228-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (6-0)

15. 142-66P-004

800 NORTH GALLATIN PIKE

Council District 09 (Bill Pridemore) Staff Reviewer: Latisha Birkeland

A request to revise the preliminary plan for a portion of a Planned Unit Development Overlay District on property located at 800 Gallatin Pike, at the corner of Gallatin Pike and Anderson Lane (4.89 acres), zoned CL, to remodel and occupy existing structure, requested by Gresham Smith & Partners, applicant; Macs Retail, LLC, owner. Staff Recommendation: Defer to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 142-66P-001 to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission Meeting. (5-0-1)

16. 69-83P-001

HICKORY VILLAGE PUD (AMENDMENT)

Council District 14 (Kevin Rhoten) Staff Reviewer: Shawn Shepard

A request to amend a portion of a Planned Unit Development and variance from the sidewalk requirements on property located at 5055 Old Hickory Blvd and a portion of property at 5045 Old Hickory Blvd, at the corner of Old Hickory Blvd and Juarez Drive, zoned SCR (1.91 acres), to permit a restaurant and add an access point, requested by Ragan Smith Associates, applicant; Appalachian Land and Leasing Company, LLC, and Touchstone Real Estate, LP, owners.

Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions and disapprove without all conditions of the PUD amendment request and a recommendation of approval with conditions of the variance request..

APPLICANT REQUEST Amend a PUD.

Amend PUD

A request to amend a portion of a Planned Unit Development and variance from the sidewalk requirements on property located at 5055 Old Hickory Blvd and a portion of property at 5045 Old Hickory Blvd, at the corner of Old Hickory Blvd and Juarez Drive, zoned Shopping Center Regional (SCR) (1.91 acres), to permit a restaurant and add an access point.

Existing Zoning

<u>Shopping Center Regional (SCR)</u> is intended for high intensity retail, office, and consumer service uses for a regional market area.

<u>Planned Unit Development Overlay District (PUD)</u> is an alternative zoning process that allows for the development of land in a well-planned and coordinated manner, providing opportunities for more efficient utilization of land than would otherwise be permitted by the conventional zoning provisions of this title. The PUD district may permit a greater mixing of land uses not easily accomplished by the application of conventional zoning district boundaries, or a framework for coordinating the development of land with the provision of an adequate roadway system or essential

utilities and services. In return, the PUD district provisions require a high standard for the protection and preservation of environmentally sensitive lands, well-planned living, working and shopping environments, and an assurance of adequate and timely provision of essential utilities and streets.

DONELSON - HERMITAGE - OLD HICKORY COMMUNITY PLAN

T3 Suburban Community Center (T3 CC) is intended to enhance and create suburban community centers that serve suburban communities generally within a 10 to 20 minute drive. They are pedestrian friendly areas, generally located at prominent intersections that contain mixed use, commercial and institutional land uses, with transitional residential land uses in mixed use buildings or serving as a transition to adjoining Community Character Policies. T3 CC areas are served by highly connected street networks, sidewalks and existing or planned mass transit leading to surrounding neighborhoods and open space. Infrastructure and transportation networks may be enhanced to improve pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular connectivity.

Consistent with Policy?

The T3 CC policy supports mixed use, commercial, office, residential and institutional uses that are intended to serve suburban communities within a 10-20 minute drive. The application proposes amendment of an existing commercial PUD to permit the addition of two restaurants within an existing commercial shopping center. The T3 CC policy provides guidance regarding access and connectivity, including that access should be provided from arterial boulevards or collector avenues, with cross-access for multiple developments within a center and alignment of access points with those for development across the street. The PUD amendment proposes a new access point to Juarez Drive. Juarez Drive is identified as a collector avenue on the Major and Collector Street Plan. The proposed access point is aligned with Lopez Lane on the south side of Juarez and will be shared by the medical center and other uses within the PUD, consistent with the guidance in the policy. The proposed new sidewalk along Old Hickory Boulevard and maintenance of the existing sidewalk along Juarez will enhance pedestrian connectivity within the development and in the larger area.

HISTORY

Metro Council approved the Hickory Village commercial PUD in 1983. The originally approved Preliminary PUD plan included a mix of food service, grocery store, and retail uses totaling 152,150 square feet. The current PUD amendment proposal includes the entirety of parcel 161, which received approval of a revision to preliminary and final in 1992 to permit a 5,030-square-foot Applebee's restaurant. The PUD amendment proposal also includes a portion of parcel 162, which contains an existing 30,686-square-foot medical center. The Planning Commission approved the medical center by a revision to the preliminary and a final in 1995. The revised preliminary plan for the medical center increased the total square footage permitted within the PUD by 10 percent, from 152,150 square feet to 167,365 square feet.

The Planning Commission has subsequently approved other revisions to the preliminary plan and final PUD plans for development on other outparcels within the PUD, as well as expansion of the primary retail center use, a Lowes Home Improvement store. The PUD plan has not been amended by Metro Council since the time of the original approval.

The applicant under review is considered an amendment because it is proposing a vehicular access to a road not previously accessed by the PUD.

PLAN DETAILS

The site is located at the northwest corner of the intersection of Old Hickory Boulevard and Juarez Drive in Hermitage. The PUD amendment area totals 1.91 acres, and includes all of parcel 161, currently developed as an Applebee's restaurant, and a portion of parcel 162, which contains an existing medical center and associated parking. Vehicular access to both the Applebee's and medical center is provided via a shared drive on Old Hickory Boulevard, located approximately 580 feet north of the intersection of Old Hickory Boulevard and Juarez Drive. The parking area for the Applebee's restaurant is accessed by a shared drive that runs through the parking lot for the medical center. Site Plan

The site plan includes demolition of the existing Applebee's restaurant and replacement of the building with 6,500 square feet of new restaurant space. Proposed Restaurant A includes 4,300 square feet and Proposed Restaurant B includes 2,220 square feet. The existing parking area for the restaurant will be reconfigured to include a drive-through lane, bypass lane, and parking for the new restaurants. The plan also includes construction of a new access point for the PUD on Juarez Drive. The access point will extend from the southern edge of the parking area for the medical center and will provide access to both the new restaurants and the parking for the existing medical center. The proposed plan will not alter the existing medical building. Only a 0.39-acre portion of parcel 162, which contains 15 parking spaces, is included in the PUD amendment area.

Parcel 161 currently contains 102 parking spaces, 27 of which will be removed with the restaurant expansion and addition of the drive-thru and bypass lanes. A total of 75 parking spaces are provided on parcel 161 to serve the proposed restaurants, where 65 spaces are required by the Metro Zoning Ordinance. The construction of the new access drive will result in the loss of nine existing parking spaces for the medical center on parcel 162. The Metro Zoning Ordinance requires a total of 123 parking spaces for the existing 30,686-square-foot medical building. There

are 132 parking spaces provided on Parcel 162 currently. Removal of nine spaces will result in a net total of 126 parking spaces which exceeds the minimum requirement established in the Zoning Ordinance by three spaces.

The plan proposes an alternative sidewalk design for the site frontage along Old Hickory Boulevard consisting of a six-foot sidewalk and a six-foot planting strip. The plan also proposes to maintain the existing five-foot sidewalk with no planting strip along Juarez Drive.

SIDEWALK VARIANCE

Neither the proposed sidewalk along Old Hickory Boulevard nor the existing sidewalk along Juarez Drive is consistent with the Major and Collector Street Plan requirements, which call for an 8-foot sidewalk and 6-foot planting strip along both streets. Sidewalks consistent with the Major and Collector Street Plan requirements are required along both property frontages pursuant to the Zoning Code. Prior to final site plan, the applicant shall be required to submit a variance application to the Board of Zoning Appeals for the sidewalks. Section 17.40.340 of the Metro Zoning Code states that the Board of Zoning Appeals shall not grant variances within a Planned Unit Development for sidewalk requirements without first considering a recommendation from the Planning Commission. Although the variance request has not yet been filed with the BZA, the final site plan may be reviewed administratively provided they are consistent with the approved Preliminary, which makes this amendment request the appropriate point in the process for the Planning Commission to make a recommendation regarding the variance.

The purpose of the request is to be permitted to install sidewalks with an alternative design along Old Hickory Boulevard due to the presence of an existing open drainage ditch, utility poles, and steep slopes along the property frontage and to be permitted to maintain the existing sidewalk along Juarez Drive due to the presence of steep slopes and existing vegetation. The site includes approximately 330 feet of frontage along Old Hickory Boulevard. There are no sidewalks along Old Hickory Boulevard within this PUD. The closest segment of sidewalk is located approximately 500 feet to the south. The site includes approximately 400 feet of frontage along Juarez Drive, which has an existing five-foot sidewalk that extends west to the railroad track located approximately 550 feet east of the intersection of Juarez Drive and Lebanon Pike. There is an existing screen wall and a row of mature trees located along this side of the site.

Planning evaluated the following factors for the variance:

- 1. This section of Old Hickory Boulevard is an arterial boulevard. Juarez Drive is a collector avenue. Neither street is identified as an immediate priority transit corridor, but the site is located approximately 0.35 miles from Lebanon Pike which is identified as an immediate need transit corridor.
- Both streets serve a mix of existing residential and commercial uses, so developing a connected sidewalk network to connect pedestrians to transit services and adjacent businesses is crucial.
- 3. The existing slopes, drainage ditch, and utility poles along Old Hickory Boulevard would make construction of a sidewalk that meets ADA requirements for slope challenging.
- 4. Construction of an ADA-compliant sidewalk and planting strip along Juarez Drive would require construction of a retaining wall due to the slopes. Excavation necessary for the retaining wall would result in the loss of a row of mature trees that are providing screening for the residential development on the south side of Juarez Drive.
- 5. Building a 6-foot sidewalk and 6-foot planting strip with curb and gutter along Old Hickory Boulevard will provide a safe environment for pedestrians along the arterial while minimizing conflicts with slopes and existing utilities.
- 6. Maintaining the existing 5-foot sidewalk along Juarez Drive will provide connectivity for pedestrians while minimizing the disturbance of the slope and loss of mature trees which are providing screening.

Given the factors above, staff recommends approval of a variance request along Old Hickory Boulevard with a condition that the applicant construct the alternative sidewalk design as shown on the plan and for maintaining the existing sidewalk along Juarez Drive as shown on the plan, with a condition that the applicant pay the fee-in-lieu for the length of property frontage along Juarez Drive.

ANALYSIS

Section 17.40.120.G.2 permits the Planning Commission to approve "minor modifications" for previously approved PUDs under certain conditions. However, this request cannot be considered a "minor modification" because it introduces a new vehicular access point to an existing street not previously designated for access. The original PUD plan approved by Council did not include vehicular access to Juarez Drive. Therefore, this request must be considered by the Planning Commission as an amendment to the previously approved PUD and referred to Metro Council for approval.

The proposed PUD amendment is consistent with the T3 CC land use policy as it allows for restaurant uses within an existing commercial PUD in an established suburban community center. Although additional square footage is proposed, the total square footage does not exceed the ten percent expansion over the last Council approval that was granted at the time of approval for the medical center. The proposed access point to Juarez Drive is consistent with the guidance in the T3 CC policy for access and will enhance connectivity for the proposed restaurants and other uses within the PUD. Other than the addition of the access point, the proposed amendment is consistent with the

existing development pattern within the PUD and does not significantly deviate from the previously approved site plan in terms of layout and design.

FIRE DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION

Approve with conditions

• Fire Code issues will be addressed in the permit phase.

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION

Returned for corrections

• Cite C/D Note: Size driveway culverts per the design criteria set forth by the Metro Storm Water Management Manual (Minimum driveway culvert in Metro ROW is 15' CMP).

WATER SERVICES

Approve with conditions

 Approved as a Preliminary PUD Amendment only. The required capacity fees must also be paid prior to Final Site Plan/PUD approval.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION

Approve with conditions

- The developer's final construction drawings shall comply with the design regulations established by the Department
 of Public Works, in effect at the time of the approval of the preliminary development plan or final development plan
 or building permit, as applicable. Final design may vary based on field conditions.
- If sidewalks are required then they should be shown on the plans per the MCSP and MPW standards and specifications.
- Prior to grading permit sign off on the project, submit recorded copy of the cross access easement as required by this plan.
- Abide by Traffic and Parking conditions.

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION

Approve with conditions

In accordance with the findings of the TIS, developer shall construct the following roadway improvements:

- Developer shall extend the right turn lane on Juarez Dr. in order to provide 200 ft of storage.
- Developer shall identify drive thru queue spaces per metro code and submit pavement marking and signage plan with construction documents.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends deferral to the October 26, 2017, Planning Commission meeting unless a recommendation of approval is received from all reviewing agencies. If a recommendation of approval is received from all agencies, staff recommends approval with conditions and disapproval without all conditions of the PUD amendment and a recommendation of approval with conditions of the variance request to the Board of Zoning Appeals.

CONDITIONS (if approved)

- 1. Construct an alternate design of a 6 foot sidewalk and 6 foot grass strip along the Old Hickory Boulevard frontage, as shown on the plan.
- 2. Maintain the existing sidewalk along Juarez Drive, as shown on the plan. As a condition of a variance approval, applicant shall make a payment in lieu for the Juarez Drive frontage.
- 3. Provide a sidewalk connection 5 feet in width from the restaurants to the public sidewalk.
- 4. Staff also recommends a condition requiring the applicant to create a pedestrian connection from the existing sidewalk along Juarez Drive or the proposed sidewalk along Old Hickory Boulevard to the front entrance of the proposed restaurants.
- This approval does not include any signs. Signs in planned unit developments must be approved by the Metro Department of Codes Administration except in specific instances when the Metro Council directs the Metro Planning Commission to review such signs.
- 6. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits.
- 7. If the PUD final site plan or final plat indicates that there is less acreage than what is shown on the approved preliminary plan, the final site plan shall be appropriately adjusted to show the actual total acreage, which may require that the total number of dwelling units or total floor area be reduced.
- 8. Prior to any additional development applications for this property, and prior to or with final PUD plan application, the applicant shall provide the Planning Department with a corrected copy of the preliminary PUD plan.

Approved with conditions and disapprove without all conditions of the PUD amendment request and a recommendation of approval with conditions of the variance request. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-334

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 69-83P-001 is Approved with conditions and disapprove without all conditions of the PUD amendment request and a recommendation of approval with conditions of the variance request. (6-0)

- 1. Construct an alternate design of a 6 foot sidewalk and 6 foot grass strip along the Old Hickory Boulevard frontage, as shown on the plan.
- 2. Maintain the existing sidewalk along Juarez Drive, as shown on the plan. As a condition of a variance approval, applicant shall make a payment in lieu for the Juarez Drive frontage.
- 3. Provide a sidewalk connection 5 feet in width from the restaurants to the public sidewalk.
- 4. Staff also recommends a condition requiring the applicant to create a pedestrian connection from the existing sidewalk along Juarez Drive or the proposed sidewalk along Old Hickory Boulevard to the front entrance of the proposed restaurants.
- 5. This approval does not include any signs. Signs in planned unit developments must be approved by the Metro Department of Codes Administration except in specific instances when the Metro Council directs the Metro Planning Commission to review such signs.
- 6. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits.
- 7. If the PUD final site plan or final plat indicates that there is less acreage than what is shown on the approved preliminary plan, the final site plan shall be appropriately adjusted to show the actual total acreage, which may require that the total number of dwelling units or total floor area be reduced.
- 8. Prior to any additional development applications for this property, and prior to or with final PUD plan application, the applicant shall provide the Planning Department with a corrected copy of the preliminary PUD plan.

17. 2017Z-100PR-001

Council District 02 (DeCosta Hastings)

Staff Reviewer: Levi Hill

A request to rezone from RS5 to R6-A zoning on property located at 511 Haynes Street, approximately 440 feet east of Baptist World Center Drive (0.18 acres), requested by Filiz Bozkurt, applicant and owner.

Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions.

APPLICANT REQUEST Zone change from RS5 to R6-A

Zone Change

A request to rezone from Single-Family Residential (RS5) to One and Two-Family Residential-Alternative (R6-A) zoning on property located at 511 Haynes Street, approximately 440 feet east of Baptist World Center Drive (0.18 acres).

Existing Zoning

<u>Single-Family Residential (RS5)</u> requires a minimum 5,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 7.41 dwelling units per acre. *RS5 would permit a maximum of 1 unit.*

Proposed Zoning

One and Two-Family Residential – Alternative (R6-A) requires a minimum 6,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings and duplexes at an overall density of 7.71 dwelling units per acre including 25 percent duplex lots and is designed to create walkable neighborhoods through the use of appropriate building placement and bulk standards. The Codes Department has confirmed that R6-A would permit a maximum of 1 lot with 1 duplex lot for a total of 2 units.

BORDEAUX - WHITES CREEK COMMUNITY PLAN

<u>T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving (T4 NE)</u> is intended to create and enhance urban residential neighborhoods that provide more housing choices, improved pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity, and moderate to high density development patterns with shallow setbacks and minimal spacing between buildings. T4 NE areas are served by high levels of connectivity with complete street networks, sidewalks, bikeways and existing or planned mass transit. T4 NE policy may be applied either to undeveloped or substantially under-developed "greenfield" areas or to developed areas where redevelopment and infill produce a different character that includes increased housing diversity and connectivity. Successful infill and redevelopment in existing neighborhoods needs to take into account considerations such as timing and some elements of the existing developed character, such as the street network and block structure and proximity to centers and corridors.

Consistent with Policy?

R6-A zoning is supported by the T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving policy at this location. The proposed zone change would allow up to two units on this lot. The neighborhood is a mixture of one and two family residential uses. The site is approximately 500 feet from Baptist World Center Drive which is identified as a major arterial by the Major and Collector Street Plan. Bus service runs along Baptist World Center Drive and an MTA bus stop is located northwest of Haynes Street, approximately 800 feet from the site. The requested change would add diversity in housing stock for the immediate neighborhood while the alternative zoning district will require enhanced design standards consistent with the goals of the T4 NE policy.

ANALYSIS

The property is located on the north side of Haynes Street, east of Baptist World Center Drive. The existing zoning allows for single-family residential uses only. The neighborhood consists of a mixture of one and two family residential uses. Haynes Street consists of primarily single-family residential uses while the majority of the properties to the north along Gooch Street are developed with two-family residential uses. The site is located close to a transit route and a bus stop. The R6-A zoning district includes standards for the location of access, driveways, and parking designed to enhance the pedestrian environment. The site is located near an existing transit route and the requested rezoning would increase the diversity in housing stock for the area. Staff recommends approval as the request is consistent with the T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving Policy.

FIRE DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION N/A

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION N/A

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION Approve with conditions

· Traffic study may be required at time of development

Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: RS5

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single-Family Residential (210)	0.18	8.71 D	1 U	10	1	2

Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: R6

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Two-Family Residential* (210)	0.18	7.26 D	2 U	20	2	3

^{*}Based on two-family lots

Traffic changes between maximum: RS5 and R6

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	1	+1 U	+10	+1	+1

METRO SCHOOL BOARD REPORT

Projected student generation existing RS5 district: $\underline{0}$ Elementary $\underline{0}$ Middle $\underline{0}$ High Projected student generation proposed R6-A district: $\underline{0}$ Elementary $\underline{0}$ Middle $\underline{0}$ High

The proposed zoning district will generate no additional students beyond what would be generated under the existing RS5 zoning district. Students would attend Lillard Elementary School, Joelton Middle School, and Whites Creek High School. None of the schools have been identified as being over capacity by the Metro School Board. This information is based upon data from the school board last updated November 2016.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with conditions as this request is consistent with policy at this location.

CONDITIONS

1. Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

Approved with conditions. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-335

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that **2017Z-100PR-001 Approved with conditions. (6-0)**

 Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

18. 2017Z-101PR-001

Council District 02 (DeCosta Hastings)

Staff Reviewer: Levi Hill

A request to rezone from RS7.5 to R8-A zoning on property located at 1227, 1227 B, and 1229 Avondale Circle, approximately 900 feet west of Hampton Street (0.29 acres), requested by Skip Nashville, LLC, applicant and owner.

Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions.

APPLICANT REQUEST

Zone change from RS7.5 to R8-A

Zone Change

A request to rezone from Single-Family Residential (RS7.5) to One and Two-Family Residential-Alternative (R8-A) zoning on property located at 1227, 1227 B, and 1229 Avondale Circle, approximately 900 feet west of Hampton Street (0.29 acres).

Existing Zoning

<u>Single-Family Residential (RS7.5)</u> requires a minimum 7,500 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 4.94 dwelling units per acre. *RS7.5 would permit a maximum of 1 unit.*

Proposed Zoning

One and Two-Family Residential – Alternative (R8-A) requires a minimum 8,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings and duplexes at an overall density of 5.79 dwelling units per acre including 25 percent duplex lots and is designed to create walkable neighborhoods through the use of appropriate building placement and bulk standards. The Codes Department has confirmed that R8-A would permit a maximum of 1 lot with 1 duplex lot for a total of 2 units.

BORDEAUX – WHITES CREEK COMMUNITY PLAN

T3 Suburban Neighborhood Evolving (T4 NE) is intended to create and enhance suburban residential neighborhoods with more housing choices, improved pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity, and moderate density development patterns with moderate setbacks and spacing between buildings. T3 NE policy may be applied either to undeveloped or substantially under-developed "greenfield" areas or to developed areas where redevelopment and infill produce a different character that includes increased housing diversity and connectivity. Successful infill and redevelopment in existing neighborhoods needs to take into account considerations such as timing and some elements of the existing developed character, such as the street network, block structure, and proximity to centers and corridors. T3 NE areas are developed with creative thinking in environmentally sensitive building and site development techniques to balance the increased growth and density with its impact on area streams and rivers.

Consistent with Policy?

R8-A zoning is supported by the T3 Urban Neighborhood Evolving policy at this location. The proposed zone change would allow up to two units on this lot. The property is located in a neighborhood made up of primarily single-family residential uses. The site is located in a tier two Center by the NashvilleNext Growth and Preservation Concept Map and is approximately 500 feet from a T3 Suburban Community Center policy area. The requested change would allow for increased diversity in housing type for the area while the alternative zoning district will require enhanced design standards pertaining to building placement and parking, consistent with the goals of the T3 NE policy.

ANALYSIS

The approximately 0.29 acre property is located on the north side of Avondale Circle, east of Monticello Drive. The existing zoning allows for single-family residential uses only. The site is located approximately 500 feet from Monticello Drive which is identified as a collector by the MCSP and features an existing MTA transit route. The R8-A zoning district includes standards for the location of access, driveways, and parking designed to enhance the pedestrian environment. The requested rezoning would increase the diversity in housing stock for the area while encouraging moderate density development in proximity to a T3 CC policy area and within a designated Nashville Next tier two center. Staff recommends approval as the request is consistent with the T3 Urban Neighborhood Evolving Policy.

FIRE DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION N/A

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION N/A

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION Approve with conditions

• Traffic study may be required at time of development

Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: RS7.5

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single-Family Residential (210)	0.29	5.8 D	1 U	10	1	2

Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: R8

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Two-Family Residential* (210)	0.29	5.44 D	2 U	20	2	3

^{*}Based on two-family lots

Traffic changes between maximum: RS7.5 and R8

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-	+1 U	+10	+1	+1

METRO SCHOOL BOARD REPORT

Projected student generation existing RS7.5 district: <u>0</u> Elementary <u>0</u> Middle <u>0</u> High Projected student generation proposed R8-A district: <u>0</u> Elementary <u>0</u> Middle <u>0</u> High

The proposed zoning district will generate no additional students beyond what would be generated under the existing RS7.5 zoning district. Students would attend Alex Green Elementary School, Brick Church Middle School, and Whites Creek High School. None of the schools have been identified as being over capacity by the Metro School Board. This information is based upon data from the school board last updated November 2016.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with conditions as this request is consistent with policy at this location.

CONDITIONS

1. Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

Approved with conditions. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-336

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2017Z-101PR-001 is Approved with conditions. (6-0)

1. Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

19. 2017Z-102PR-001

Council District 21 (Ed Kindall) Staff Reviewer: Patrick Napier

A request to rezone from RS5 to R6-A zoning on property located at 746 22nd Ave N, approximately 150 feet south of Batavia Street (0.14 acres), requested by Joseph Claybon, applicant and owner.

Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions.

APPLICANT REQUEST

Zone change from RS5 to R6-A

Zone Change

A request to rezone from Single-Family Residential (RS5) to One and Two-Family Residential- Alternative (R6-A) zoning on property located at 746 22nd Ave N, approximately 150 feet south of Batavia Street (0.14 acres).

Existing Zoning

Single-Family Residential (RS5) requires a minimum 5,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at an overall density of 8.71 dwelling units per acre. RS5 would permit 1 lot with a maximum of 1 unit.

Proposed Zoning

One and Two-Family Residential-Alternative (R6-A) requires a minimum 6,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings and duplexes at an overall density of 7.26 dwelling units per acre including 25 percent duplex lots. The Codes Department has confirmed that R6-A would permit a maximum of 1 duplex lot.

NORTH NASHVILLE COMMUNITY PLAN

T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving (T4 NE) is intended to create and enhance urban residential neighborhoods that provide more housing choices, improved pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity, and moderate to high density development patterns with shallow setbacks and minimal spacing between buildings. T4 NE areas are served by high levels of connectivity with complete street networks, sidewalks, bikeways and existing or planned mass transit. T4 NE policy may be applied either to undeveloped or substantially under-developed "greenfield" areas or to developed areas where redevelopment and infill produce a different character that includes increased housing diversity and connectivity. Successful infill and redevelopment in existing neighborhoods needs to take into account considerations such as timing and some elements of the existing developed character, such as the street network and block structure and proximity to centers and corridors.

Consistent with Policy?

Yes. The proposed R6-A zoning district is consistent with T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving policy at this location as it provides the potential for increased housing choice within the area. T4 NE areas are intended to contain moderate to high intensity which contain a diverse mix of housing and smaller lot sizes.

ANALYSIS

The site is located at 746 22nd Ave N, approximately 150 feet south of Batavia Street and is currently vacant. The site does not have access to a built alley; however, design standards for driveway width and parking would apply. The surrounding neighborhood contains a mixture of land uses such as single and two-family residential uses as well as community and institutional uses. Herman Street, a collector as designated by the Major and Collector Street Plan, is located 540 feet to the north. The R6-A zoning district contains design standards to address the pedestrian environment related to parking location and driveway widths.

The proposed rezoning provides the potential for increased housing supply and increased housing choice. The parcel contained in this rezoning is located within 540 feet of a Residential Collector Street, which contains MTA bus service. This will provide a choice of transportation for future residents of this site.

FIRE DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION

N/A

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION

N/A

WATER SERVICES

N/A

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION

N/A

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION

Approved with conditions

• TIS (Traffic Impact Study) may be required with redevelopment

Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: RS5

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single-Family Residential (210)	0.14	8.71 D	1 U	10	1	2

Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: R6

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Two-Family Residential* (210)	0.14	7.26 D	2 U	20	2	3

^{*}Based on two-family lots

Traffic changes between maximum: RS5 and R6

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-	+1 U	+10	+1	+1

METRO SCHOOL BOARD REPORT

Projected student generation existing RS5 district: $\underline{0}$ Elementary $\underline{0}$ Middle $\underline{0}$ High Projected student generation proposed R6-A district: $\underline{0}$ Elementary $\underline{0}$ Middle $\underline{0}$ High

The proposed R6-A zoning district will not generate more students than what is typically generated under the existing RS5 zoning district. Students would attend Park Avenue Enhanced Optional Elementary School, McKissack Middle School, and Pearl-Cohn High School. Each school has been identified as having additional capacity. This information is based upon data from the school board last updated November 2016.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with conditions as this proposal is consistent with T4 Neighborhood Evolving policy.

CONDITIONS

1. Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

Approved with conditions. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-337

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2017Z-102PR-001 is Approved with conditions. (6-0)

 Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

20. 2017Z-103PR-001

Council District 21 (Ed Kindall) Staff Reviewer: Gene Burse

A request to rezone from RS5 to R6-A zoning on property located at 750 22nd Ave N, approximately 60 feet south of Batavia Street (0.14 acres), requested by Joseph Claybon, applicant and owner.

Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions.

APPLICANT REQUEST

Zone change from RS5 to R6-A.

Zone Change

A request to rezone from Single-Family Residential (RS5) zoning to One and Two-Family Residential- Alternative (R6-A) zoning on property located at 750 22nd Avenue North, approximately 60 feet south of Batavia Street (0.14 acres).

Existing Zoning

<u>Single-Family Residential (RS5)</u> requires a minimum 5,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at an overall density of 8.71 dwelling units per acre. *RS5 would permit 1 lot with a maximum of 1 unit.*

Proposed Zoning

One and Two-Family Residential-Alternative (R6-A) requires a minimum 6,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings and duplexes at an overall density of 7.26 dwelling units per acre including 25 percent duplex lots. The Codes Department has confirmed that R6-A would permit a maximum of 1 duplex lot.

NORTH NASHVILLE COMMUNITY PLAN

T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving (T4 NE) is intended to create and enhance urban residential neighborhoods that provide more housing choices, improved pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity, and moderate to high density development patterns with shallow setbacks and minimal spacing between buildings. T4 NE areas are served by high levels of connectivity with complete street networks, sidewalks, bikeways and existing or planned mass transit. T4 NE policy may be applied either to undeveloped or substantially under-developed "greenfield" areas or to developed areas where redevelopment and infill produce a different character that includes increased housing diversity and connectivity. Successful infill and redevelopment in existing neighborhoods needs to take into account considerations such as timing and some elements of the existing developed character, such as the street network and block structure and proximity to centers and corridors.

Consistent with Policy?

Yes. The proposed R6-A zoning district is consistent with T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving policy at this location as it can provide for a more diverse mix of housing options within the immediate area.

ANALYSIS

The site is located at 750 22nd Avenue North and consists of an existing single-family residential structure. Nearby land uses include single-family and two-family residential uses as well as vacant land. The site is located approximately 436 feet south of Herman Street, a major street according to the Major and Collector Street Plan. Herman Street also has existing transit service. The nearest bus stop is approximately 516 feet north of the site. The site does not have access to a built alley, however, design standards for driveway width and parking would apply.

The proposed rezoning and potential redevelopment will provide additional housing options within the immediate neighborhood while being located near existing transit service.

FIRE DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION N/A

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION N/A

WATER SERVICES N/A

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION N/A

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION Approved with conditions

• TIS (Traffic Impact Study) may be required with redevelopment

Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: RS5

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single-Family Residential (210)	0.14	8.71 D	1 U	10	1	2

Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: R6

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Two-Family Residential* (210)	0.14	7.26 D	2 U	20	2	3

^{*}Based on two-family lots

Traffic changes between maximum: RS5 and R6

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-	+1 U	+10	+1	+1

METRO SCHOOL BOARD REPORT

Projected student generation existing RS5 district: <u>0</u> Elementary <u>0</u> Middle <u>0</u> High Projected student generation proposed R6-A district: <u>0</u> Elementary <u>0</u> Middle <u>0</u> High

The proposed R6-A zoning district will not generate more students than what is typically generated under the existing RS5 zoning district. Students would attend Park Avenue Enhanced Optional Elementary School, McKissack Middle School, and Pearl-Cohn High School. Each school has been identified as having additional capacity. This information is based upon data from the school board last updated November 2016.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with conditions as this proposal is consistent with T4 Neighborhood Evolving policy.

Conditions

1. Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

Approved with conditions. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-338

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2017Z-103PR-001 is Approved with conditions. (6-0)

1. Requesting this rezoning may affect the provision of affordable or workforce housing units in rental projects involving five or more rental units on site, as set forth in Ordinance Nos. BL 2016-133, and BL2016-342, which authorizes Metro grants to offset the provision of affordable or workforce housing units.

21. 2017Z-104PR-001

Council District 31 (Fabian Bedne) Staff Reviewer: Shawn Shepard

A request to rezone from SP-R to AR2a zoning on property located at 7724 Old Burkitt Road, approximately 290 feet east of Nolensville Pike (23.08 acres), requested by Civil Site Design Group, PLLC, applicant; McGowan Investments, Inc., owner.

Staff Recommendation: Approve.

APPLICANT REQUEST Zone change from SP to AR2a.

Zone Change

A request to rezone from Specific Plan – Residential (SP-R) to Agricultural/Residential (AR2a) zoning on property located at 7724 Old Burkitt Road, approximately 290 feet east of Nolensville Pike (23.08 acres).

Existing Zoning

<u>Specific Plan – Residential (SP-R)</u> is a zoning district category that provides for additional flexibility of design, including the relationship of streets to buildings, to provide the ability to implement the specific details of the General Plan. This Specific Plan includes only one residential building type. *This Specific Plan permits a maximum of 99 single-family residential lots*.

Proposed Zoning

Agricultural/Residential (AR2a) requires a minimum lot size of two acres and intended for uses that generally occur in rural areas, including single-family, two-family, and mobile homes at a density of one dwelling unit per two acres. The AR2a District is intended to implement the natural conservation or rural land use policies of the general plan. AR2a would permit a maximum of 11 lots with two duplex lots for a total of 13 units.

SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY PLAN

T3 Suburban Neighborhood Evolving (T3 NE) is intended to create and enhance suburban residential neighborhoods with more housing choices, improved pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity, and moderate density development patterns with moderate setbacks and spacing between buildings. T3 NE policy may be applied either to undeveloped or substantially under-developed "greenfield" areas or to developed areas where redevelopment and infill produce a different character that includes increased housing diversity and connectivity. Successful infill and redevelopment in existing neighborhoods needs to take into account considerations such as timing and some elements of the existing developed character, such as the street network, block structure, and proximity to centers and corridors. T3 NE areas are developed with creative thinking in environmentally sensitive building and site development techniques to balance the increased growth and density with its impact on area streams and rivers.

HISTORY

On May 18, 2016, the Metro Council approved a zone change from AR2a to Specific Plan zoning for this parcel to permit a maximum of 99 single-family lots. The current request is to revert back to the AR2a zoning that was in place prior to approval of the SP. The requested zoning is consistent with the zoning of the surrounding area as well as with the existing development pattern of larger single-family lots and vacant properties.

Consistent with Policy?

T3 NE policy potentially supports a range of residential zoning districts depending on the locational characteristics and surrounding context of the subject property. The subject property is currently vacant and is surrounded by a large area of AR2a zoning to the east, north and west. The area is designated a Neighborhood on the NashvilleNext Growth and Preservation Concept Map. The property is also located at the edge of the T3 NE policy area, allowing it to serve as a transition between more intense development along Nolensville Pike and the surrounding area. Although T3 NE policy supports moderate density residential development and enhanced connectivity, the development pattern of the larger T3 NE area currently consists of larger, single-family lots and vacant properties. The T3 NE policy designation indicates that this larger area may evolve with new development and redevelopment over time, but a coherent future context has not yet been established, making it difficult to determine what sort of transition this property should provide to the surrounding area.

ANALYSIS

The proposal to return the zoning back to AR2a will ensure that the property is zoned consistently with the surrounding area until the future character of the evolving area begins to take shape. Given the existing development pattern in this T3 NE policy area and the location of the property adjacent to a large area of AR2a zoning, the requested AR2a zoning is appropriate in T3 NE policy in this context.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION N/A

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION

Approve with conditions

• A traffic study may be required at the time of development

Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: SP

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single-Family Residential (210)	23.08		99 U	1031	80	107

Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: AR2a

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single-Family Residential (210)	23.08	0.5	11 U	106	9	12

Traffic changes between maximum: SP and AR2a

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-	-88 U	-925	-71	-95

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval as the requested zoning is consistent with the T3 NE policy in this location and context.

Approved. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-339

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2017Z-104PR-001 is Approved. (6-0)

H: OTHER BUSINESS

22. Renewal Contract for Peter Bird.

Approved. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-340

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission has **Approved the Renewal Contract for Peter Bird.** (6-0)

23. 2018 Planning Commission filing deadline & meeting schedule.

Approved. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-341

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission has **Approved the Planning Commission filing** deadline and meeting schedule. (6-0)

24.	A Resolution authorizing the expenditure of \$40,000 from the Advance Planning and Research Fund for an Transfel
	of Development Rights Study between the Metropolitan Planning Commission and Economic & Planning Systems,
	Inc.

Approved. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-342

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission has Approved the Resolution authorizing the expenditure of \$40,000 from the from the Advance Planning and Research Fund for a Transfer of Development Rights Study between the Metropolitan Planning Commission and Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.(6-0)

- 25. Historic Zoning Commission Report
- 26. Board of Parks and Recreation Report
- 27. Executive Committee Report
- 28. Accept the Director's Report and Approve Administrative Items

Approved. (6-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2017-343

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission has **Approved the Directors Report and Administrative Items.** (6-0)

29. Legislative Update

I: MPC CALENDAR OF UPCOMING EVENTS

October 26, 2017

MPC Meeting

4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center

November 09, 2017

MPC Meeting

4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center

December 14, 2017

MPC Meeting

4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center

J: ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 4:24 p.m.

Chairman	 	 	
Secretary			

METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT



OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY

Planning Department

Metro Office Building, 2nd Floor

Date:	October 12, 2017
To: Commissioners	Metropolitan Nashville-Davidson County Planning
From:	Doug Sloan, Executive Director
Re:	Executive Director's Report

The following items are provided for your information.

A. Planning Commission Meeting Projected Attendance (6 members are required for a quorum)

- 1. Planning Commission Meeting
 - a. Attending: Adkins; Blackshear; Sims; Bedne; Moore
 - b. Leaving Early: Haynes (5p)
 - c. Not Attending: Farr; Gobbell; Tibbs; Hagan-Dier
- 2. Legal Representation Emily Lamb will be attending.

B. Executive Office

1. Outreach to Metro schools since the last meeting has included two explanations of general planning principles to classes at Glencliff High, a demonstration of a landscape architect's site assessment process at Stratford High, and a discussion of growth and planning at Stratford.

C. Mapping/GIS

1. Jennifer Johnson starts Monday, October 9.

Administrative Approved Items and

Staff Reviewed Items Recommended for approval by the Metropolitan Planning Commission

In accordance with the Rules and Procedures of the Metropolitan Planning Commission, the following applications have been reviewed by staff for conformance with applicable codes and regulations. Applications have been approved on behalf of the Planning Commission or are ready to be approved by the Planning Commission through acceptance and approval of this report. Items presented are items reviewed **through 10/4/2017**.

APPROVALS	# of Applics	# of Applics '17
Specific Plans	3	37
PUDs	1	14
UDOs	1	10
Subdivisions	10	151
Mandatory Referrals	12	177
Grand Total	27	389

SPECIFIC PLANS (finals only): MPC Approval

Finding: Final site plan conforms to the approved development plan.

Date Submitted	Staff Determination		Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District # (CM Name)
3/2/2017	9/21/2017		2016SP-054-	KIRKPATRICK	A request for final site plan approval on properties located at 804 Sylvan Street, at the southeast corner of Sylvan Street and South 8th Street, zoned SP-MU and within the Cayce Redevelopment District (11.83 acres), to permit 94 residential units and two parks, requested by Barge Cauthen and Associates, applicant; M.D.H.A.,	
14:01	0:00	PLAPADMIN	002	PARK	owner.	06 (Brett Withers)
11/30/2016 13:50	9/21/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	2016SP-041- 002	CHARTWELL HOTEL	A request for final site plan approval on property located at 5630 Franklin Pike Circle, 600 feet northeast of Old Hickory Boulevard (1.96 acres), to permit a hotel, requested by Littlejohn Engineering Associates, applicant, Northumberland Hotel Partners, LLC, owner.	34 (Angie Henderson)

					A request for final site plan approval	
					for properties located at 100 and 102	
					Thompson Lane, approximately 485	
					feet west of Hartford Drive (3.02	
					acres), to permit a 52 unit residential	
				100 AND 102	development, requested by Dale &	
3/16/2017	9/29/2017		2015SP-089-	THOMPSON LANE	Associates, applicant; 100 Thompson,	
8:46	0:00	PLRECAPPR	002	(FINAL)	LLC, owner.	16 (Mike Freeman)
				, ,	,	,

	URBAN	DESIGN OV	ERLAYS (fir	nals and varia	ances only) : MPC Appro	oval
Finding	: all design s	tandards of the	e overlay distr	ict and other ap satisfied.	plicable requirements of the c	ode have been
Date Submitted	Staff De	termination	Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District # (CM Name)
5/18/2017 11:40	9/27/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	2005UD-001- 002	SUNTRUST BANK - BELLE MEADE	A request for final site plan approval on property located at 4308 Harding Pike, approximately 350 feet southwest of Bosley Springs Road, zoned CS and within the Harding/White Bridge Urban Design Overlay District (0.49 acres), to permit a building, requested by Gresham Smith and Partners, applicant; Third National Bank, owner.	24 (Kathleen Murphy)
F	PLANNED	UNIT DEVEL	OPMENTS	(finals and v	ariances only) : MPC Ap	proval
Date Submitted	Staff Det	termination	Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District # (CM Name)
11/14/2016 15:35	9/21/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	72-74P-002	GLO-BEST WESTERN HOTEL	A request for final site plan approval on a Planned Unit Development Overlay District located at 425 Glastonbury Road, approximately 380 feet southwest of Briley Parkway, zoned CL (6.45 acres), to permit a hotel, requested by T-Square Engineering, applicant; Music City Airport Hospitality, LLC, owner.	13 (Holly Huezo)

	MANDATORY REFERRALS: MPC Approval								
Date Submitted	Staff Determination	Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District (CM Name)				

					A request for underground	
					encroachments comprised of a wood	
					deck, concrete walkway, stairs and	
					I -	
					handrail encroaching the public right-of- way on 51st Avenue North and Illinois	
				FO10 II LINIOIS	I -	
				5010 ILLINOIS AVENUE	Avenue (Map 091-11 Parcel 058) (see site plan for details), requested by	
6/27/2017	9/26/2017		2017M-032EN-	UNDERGROUND	MiKen Development, LLC, applicant; HR	20 (Mary Carolyn
12:33	0:00	PLRECAPPR	001	ENCROACHMENT	Properties of Tennessee, owner.	Roberts)
12.55	0.00	TERECATTR	001	ENCHOACHWENT	rioperates of refinessee, owner.	Nobel (3)
					A request approving a form Master	
					Telecommunications Facility Licensing	
					Agreement (Master License Agreement,	
					or MLA), to be used by Metropolitan	
					Government departments, agencies,	
					boards and commissions, to license their	
					assets and infrastructure to licensees for	
					location of telecommunication facilities	
					on them, and authorizing certain	
					Metropolitan Government officials to	
					execute the MLA, in the form of the	
					attached, on behalf of the Metropolitan	
				MASTER	Government, and to complete and	
				TELECOMMUNICA	execute the Site License Agreements	
				TIONS FACILITY	with the Licensees, that are exhibits to	
9/6/2017	9/28/2017		2017M-019AG-	LEASING	the MLA, for the sites in question,	
11:35	0:00	PLRECAPPR	001	AGREEMENT	requested by Metro.	
					A request for three (3) aerial	
					encroachments comprised of one (1)	
					internally illuminated canopy projecting	
					over the public right-of-way on Church	
					Street, one (1) internally illuminated canopy projecting over the public right-	
					of-way on 4th Avenue North, and one	
					(1) internally illuminated blade sign	
					projecting over the public right-of-way	
					on Church Street on property located at	
				NOELLE HOTEL AT	200 4th Avenue North (Map 093-06-1	
				200 4TH AVENUE	Parcel 060), requested by Sideshow Sign	
9/27/2017	10/3/2017		2017M-049EN-	NORTH	Company, applicant; RB Nashville, LLC,	19 (Freddie
14:29	0:00	PLRECAPPR	001	ENCROACHMENTS	owner.	O'Connell)
						, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
					A request for the abandonment of the	
					original Cane Ridge Road right-of-way,	
					that existed prior to the alignment of	
					Cane Ridge Road at Bell Road (see	
				CANE RIDGE ROAD	sketch for details), easements are to be	
8/25/2017	10/3/2017		2017M-025AB-	ROW	retained, requested by Perry	
13:05	0:00	PLRECAPPR	001	ABANDONMENT	Engineering, LLC, applicant.	32 (Jacobia Dowell)
					A voquest for the shared surrent of	
					A request for the abandonment of	
					approximately 275 linear feet of 2.25-	
					inch Water Main and acceptance of new	
					275 linear feet of 6-inch Water Main, 102 linear feet of 8-inch Sewer Main,	
					Sanitary Manholes and Fire Hydrant and	
0/20/2047	10/4/2017		201714 00250	21CT AND	any associated easements (Map 104-02-	
8/28/2017 15:01	10/4/2017	DIDECADOD	2017M-062ES-	31ST AND	2 E Parcels 001-013, 900) (Project No.	21 (Ed Vindall)
15:01	0:00	PLRECAPPR	001	BELWOOD	16-SL-225 and 16-WL-205), requested by	21 (Ed Kindall)
	i		İ		10 31 223 and 10 WE-203], requested by	

					Metro Water Services, applicant.	
9/6/2017 13:50	10/4/2017 0:00	PLRECAPPR	2017M-039EN- 001	VILLAGE 21 AERIAL ENCROACHMENT	A request for an aerial encroachment comprised of one (1) double-faced, illuminated projecting sign encroaching the public right-of-way on 1608 21st Ave South (Map 104-08-0-O Parcel 001) (see drawings for details), requested by Joslin Signs, applicant; Village 21 Investment Partners, LLC, owner.	17 (Colby Sledge)
9/6/2017 14:23	10/4/2017 0:00	PLRECAPPR	2017M-040EN- 001	CITY TAP HOUSE AERIAL ENCROACHMENT	A request for an aerial encroachment comprised of one (1) double-faced, illuminated projecting sign encroaching the public right-of-way on 205 Demonbreun (Map 093-06-4 Parcel 107) (see drawings for details), requested by Joslin Signs, applicant; Demonbreun Realty Holding Company, LLC, owner.	19 (Freddie O'Connell)
9/7/2017 14:38	10/4/2017 0:00	PLRECAPPR	2017M-043PR- 001	GREENWAYS FOR NASHVILLE, INC. PROPERTY ACCEPTANCE	A request for an ordinance approving and authorizing the Director of Public Property Administration, or his designee, to accept a donation of real property located at the intersection of Blue Hole Road and Bell Road (Map 162 Parcel 123) for use as part of the parks system, requested by Metro Department of Finance, applicant; Greenways for Nashville, Inc., owner.	32 (Jacobia Dowell)
9/8/2017 8:22	10/4/2017 0:00	PLRECAPPR	2017M-063ES- 001	URBAN FLATS	A request for the abandonment of approximately 89 linear feet of 8-inch Sewer Main and easements and acceptance of new 155 linear feet of 8-inch Sewer Main, 169 linear feet of 6-inch Water Main, Sanitary Manholes, and any associated easements (Map 091-11 Parcel 282) (Project No. 17-SL-108 and 17-WL-88), requested by Metro Water Services, applicant.	20 (Mary Carolyn Roberts)
9/8/2017 8:42	10/4/2017 0:00	PLRECAPPR	2017M-064ES- 001	DODSON CHAPEL ROAD SIDEWALK PROJECT	A request for Right-of-way Easements and Temporary Construction Easements for the Dodson Chapel Road Sidewalk Project (Project No. 2017-R-007) (see vicinity map for details), requested by Metro Public Works, applicant.	14 (Kevin Rhoten)
9/13/2017 11:32	10/4/2017 0:00	PLRECAPPR	2017M-065ES- 001	CECILIA AVENUE SIDEWALK PROJECT	A request for temporary construction easements and a permanent drainage easement for the Cecilia Avenue Sidewalk Project, between 15th Avenue North and 11th Avenue North (Project No. 2017-R-19) (see site plan for details), requested by Metro Public Works, applicant.	02 (DeCosta Hastings)
9/20/2017 9:55	10/4/2017 0:00	PLRECAPPR	2017M-022PR- 004	STORMWATER REPETITIVE FLOOD DAMAGE HOME	A request to authorize the Director of Public Property, or his designee, to negotiate and acquire, by fee simple	06 (Brett Withers); 11 (Larry Hagar); 29

		BUYOUT 4	purchase, various properties for Metro	(Karen Y. Johnson)
			Water Services (Project No. 17WS0001)	
			(Map 083-13 Parcel 333; Map 064-09,	
			Parcel 091; Map 150-02, Parcel 284,	
			581), requested by Metro Water	
			Services, applicant.	

SUBDIVISIONS: Administrative Approval									
Date Submitted	Date Approve d	Action	Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District (CM Name)			
6/14/2017 8:32	9/20/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	20175-168-001	SUNSET VIEW SUBDIVISION SECTION 8 RESUB OF LOT 611	A request for final plat approval to create two lots on property located at 2256 A Cabin Hill Road, approximately 175 feet northwest of Ridgeland Drive, zoned RS15 (1.9 acres), requested by 4Site, Inc., applicant; IRA Innovations, LLC, owner.	15 (Jeff Syracuse)			
6/26/2017 12:35	9/21/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	20175-178-001	108 AND 110 MYRTLE STREET	A request for final plat approval to shift lot lines on properties located at 108 Myrtle Street and Myrtle Street (unnumbered), approximately 95 feet west of Ramsey Street, zoned RM20 (0.40 acres), requested by DBS & Associates Engineering, applicant; JNBW Properties, LLC, owner.	05 (Scott Davis)			
3/16/2017 10:36	9/22/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	20175-092-001	NOEL'S SUBDIVISION OF WATKIN'S GROVE, RESUB OF LOT 74	A request for final plat approval to create two lots on property located at 3421 Amanda Avenue, approximately 440 feet north of Woodmont Blvd, zoned R20 (0.92 acres), requested by Smith Land Surveying, applicant; Teresa Ubico and Allison Wolverton, owners.	25 (Russ Pulley)			
2/14/2017 13:00	9/22/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	2017S-071-001	WAL-MART NEIGHBORHOOD MARKET RESUB OF LOT 1	A request for final plat approval to create two lots on property located at 1216 Gallatin Avenue, approximately 165 feet south of Douglas Avenue, zoned SP-C (4.39 acres), requested by Kenneth Church, applicant; CK Spacemax Nashville, LLC, owner.	05 (Scott Davis)			
6/20/2017 11:00	9/25/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	20175-176-001	SHELBY LAND COMPANY/SMALL /MAGID PLAT	A request for final plat approval to create two lots on property located at 610 South 2nd Street, at the northwest corner of South 2nd Street and Davidson Street, zoned IG (6.48 acres), requested by Cherry Land Surveying, applicant; Elise Small, owner.	06 (Brett Withers)			

7/5/2017 11:46	10/4/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	20175-189-001	AIRPARK EAST PHASE 1-A RESUB OF LOT 3B	A request for final plat approval to create two lots on property located at 120 Airpark Center East, at the northwest corner of Airpark Center East and Airpark Commerce Drive, zoned IWD (15.26 acres), requested by Cherry Land Surveying, applicant; Solomon TMH, LLC, owner.	29 (Karen Y. Johnson)
6/1/2017 9:16	10/4/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	2017S-159-001	12TH AND BROADWAY CONSOLIDATION PLAT	A request for final plat approval to consolidate seven lots into one lot on properties located at 1200, 1202, 1208, 1210, 1214, 1220, and 1222 Broadway, at the northwest corner of 12th Avenue North and Broadway, zoned DTC (1.60 acres), requested by Civil Site Design Group, applicant; Broadway Whiskey Partners, LTD, owner.	19 (Freddie O'Connell)
2/15/2017 14:12	10/4/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	2015S-147-002	HAMILTON RUN	A request for final site plan approval to create 130 lots on a portion of property located at Hamilton Church Road (unnumbered), approximately 200 feet west of Marhaden Drive, zoned RS10 (36.2 acres), requested by Dale and Associates, applicant; Ole South/Craighead Joint Venture; owner.	33 (Lee)
4/24/2017 14:03	10/2/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	2017S-131-001	HOPE GARDENS	A request for final plat approval to create two lots on property located at 1021 10th Ave N, approximately 120 feet south of Jefferson Street, zoned RS3.75, DTC and within the Phillips-Jackson Street Redevelopment District (0.22 acres), requested by Clint T. Elliott, applicant; JDG Investments, owner.	19 (Freddie O'Connell)
5/31/2017 11:20	10/2/2017 0:00	PLAPADMIN	2017S-154-001	HADLEY'S BEND CITY S/D BLOCK P RESUB OF LOTS 17, 19 AND 21	A request for final plat approval to shift lot lines on properties located at 202 Hadley's Bend Boulevard and Hadley's Bend Boulevard (unnumbered), at the northeast corner of Handley's Bend Boulevard and Center Street, zoned R8 (0.75 acres), requested by W. T. Smith Land Surveying, applicant; Jeffrey Scott and Rosemary Sherrod, owners.	11 (Larry Hagar)

Performance Bonds: Administrative Approvals				
Date Approved	Administrative Action	Bond #	Project Name	
10/4/2017	Approved Extension/Reduction	2015B-024-003	LIV EAST, PHASE 1	
10/2/17	Approved Extension	2006B-036-010	ROEHRIG ESTATES	

10/2/17	Approved Extension	2014B-023-003	ANDREW CASTLEMAN LANDS, CONSOLIDATION LOTS 1 & 2
9/28/17	Approved Extension	2015B-031-003	CAPITOL VIEW
9/25/17	Approved Extension	2016B-042-002	TUCKER W. WHITE SUBDIVISION AND LOT 1 OF CENTURY CROSSROADS

Schedule

- **A.** Thursday, October 12, 2017-MPC Meeting: 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center
- **B.** Thursday, October 26, 2017-MPC Meeting; 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center
- **C.** Thursday, November 9, 2017- MPC Meeting; 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center
- **D.** Thursday, December 14, 2017-MPC Meeting; 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center